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EXCELLENT SERVICE 

AND ATMOSPHERE.

 

BEAUTIFUL FOOD. 

 

VERY COMFORTABLE 

AND COSY SEATING. 

 

A VARIETY OF AREAS 

TO CHOOSE FROM. 

FROM A MEMBER

A review from an Orange Ex-Services' Club Member.
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V C E O ' S  R E P O R T

8 A U D I T O R ' S  I N D E P E N D E N C E  D E C L A R A T I O N
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Dear Members,

 

It is with great pleasure that I present to you

the 50th Annual Report and Financial

Statements on behalf of my fellow Directors

of the Orange Ex-Services' Club for the year

ended 31 December 2021.

 

2021 saw a continuation of the Covid-19

pandemic and the challenges we as a

community faced due to restrictions and

lockdowns. While we all enjoyed a taste of

freedom in the earlier parts of the year, we

were not yet completely free of the

pandemic. The arrival of the Delta variant in

the middle of the year forced Greater Sydney

and later Regional NSW into another

lockdown. The arrival of the Omicron variant

in the later stages of 2021 means that Covid-

19 will be with us in 2022. The Club will

continue to monitor the situation, abide by

all government restrictions, and continue

supporting our members, staff, and the

Orange community.

 

PRESIDENT'S

REPORT

Graham Gentles
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CLUBGRANTS CATEGORY
1 AND 2 DONATIONS OF

$273,985.80

PURCHASE OF LOCAL
GOODS AND SERVICES OF

 $5.5 MILLION

'SOCIAL CAPITAL' SUCH AS FREE
ENTERTAINMENT AND MEMBER

ACTIVITIES IN EXCESS OF 

$140K

WAGES FOR MORE THAN
195 STAFF IN EXCESS OF 

$8.1 MILLION

MEMBER DISCOUNTED
PRICING PROVIDED

MEMBERS WITH JUST OVER

$711K
IN DISCOUNTS ON VARIOUS
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
THROUGHOUT THE CLUB.
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Unfortunately, due to the Covid-19 pandemic, the Kokoda Youth Leadership

Challenge program did not run in 2020 or 2021. The Club has supported this

initiative for many years and is resolute in our commitment to support the

program upon its reactivation. We are in contact with the Kokoda Youth

Leadership Challenge organisers, and we will provide updated information

through our website. Let us all hope that this program will return in 2023.

Due to the pandemic, the 2021 Club Sports Awards were postponed once again

due to the ongoing restrictions. The Board ask that all members and their families

consider taking up a sport this year by joining one of our sub-clubs, such as

Swimming, Bowls, Hockey, Soccer, Cards, Golf or Tennis. With your participation

and support, these organisations, which are the lifeblood of our Club, will grow

and thrive in 2022. 

The ongoing strength of the Club has enabled the completion of upgrades to the

Club's facilities including a new ceiling across the entire ground floor of the Club,

upgrades to the Wentworth Golf Course, upgrades to the gaming area, an

overhaul of the Club's infrastructure and the completion of the Greenhouse

Staircase Project. 

This strength has also enabled the Club to approve the plans and commence

works to break soil on the new Clubhouse at the Wentworth site. The Board is

committed to delivering this project and continuing our investment in the

facilities at the Wentworth site. We look to build an asset that all members can be

proud of now and into the future.

I am also pleased to say that we now look to reopen the Orange Ex-Services'

Country Club in 2022. This project involves renovations to the existing bowling

green, construction of a new bowling green, and refurbishment works to the

Clubhouse. I look forward to welcoming our bowlers and Glee Club members back

home in 2022. I also look forward to building a facility that honours the Country

Club's history and that members will be proud of for many years to come. 

The Club's Board members have again contributed many hours in ensuring that

the Board fulfils its responsibilities as stewards of the Club's assets in a

professional and compliant manner. I extend my appreciation to all the Board

members, their wives and partners for their commitment, contribution and

assistance throughout the year.
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I am pleased to welcome Mr Nathan Whiteside as our new Chief Executive

Officer. Nathan was appointed as CEO in October of 2021 and came to the Club

with a wealth of experience within the Club Industry and will continue to help

grow the Orange Ex-Services' Club with first-class facilities and service.

The Board would also like to sincerely thank the management team for their hard

work, support and tireless dedication during 2021. 

I also extend sincere thanks to the front-line managers and supervisors, along

with our front and back of house staff, who have maintained a high standard of

customer service year-round. I'm sure you, the members, appreciate their

outstanding commitment day in and day out in these challenging times.

In conclusion, I would like to take this opportunity to thank you, the members, for

your continued support, your comments and assistance in complying with our

COVID-19 safety plan throughout the year have helped to make the Club a safe

harbour for you and your guests to enjoy. 

We look forward to carrying forward the strong results of 2021 through 2022.

GRAHAM GENTLES
PRESIDENT
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CEO

REPORT

N A T H A N  W H I T E S I D E
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Dear Members,

 

It gives me great pleasure to present

to you my first Chief Executive

Officer’s Report at Orange Ex-

Services’ Club for the year ending 31

December 2021. 

 

The OESC Group (Orange Ex-

Services’ Club, Wentworth Golf Club,

OESC Country Club, OESC Tennis

Club and the Mecure Orange)

recorded a combined after-tax profit

of $2,248,328 and EBITDA of

$5,776,448. This result, although

down on the unprecedented results

of 2020, was above expectations and

something for us all to be proud of

achieving.

 

In his report, the Chairman, Mr

Graham Gentles, highlights other key

figures regarding our social

contribution to the community and

our members. The Club is very proud

that it can continue to support the

local community, our staff and

members to this level year on year.
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Our strong financial position allowed us to continue to update the facilities at our

venues, even throughout the restrictions of the COVID-19 pandemic. During this

time, we were able to complete the Greenhouse Stair Project, install a new fire

sprinkler system throughout the Club, install a new watering system at

Wentworth, golf course improvements, begin the refurbishment of the Country

Club bowling green, and install a new CCTV system. At the time of writing, the

Greenhouse area is still closed as we finalise some items that need to be

addressed in that space – but rest assured it will be ready in time for the warmer

months.

After much planning, and patience by many, the new Wentworth Clubhouse DA

was approved by Council in February of 2022. At the time of writing this report,

the tender process has begun to select a construction company suitably qualified

to deliver a state-of-the-art facility second to none in our area and one for our

golfers, families, and the community in general to enjoy.

To the Chairman, Mr Graham Gentles, and the Board, I thank you for the

opportunity to lead the operations at OESC, and I look forward to doing so for

years to come. Through your experience and the strategic direction you provide, I

am sure, as a team, we will continue to grow and deliver community assets for the

benefit of Orange and its surroundings, now and into the future.

To the dedicated management team and all operational staff – thank you for your

efforts, not only in accepting me as your operational leader in such a short time

but for your tireless efforts throughout another disrupted year and through

another period of change at the Club. Your contribution to this organisation is

exceptional, and sometimes without the recognition you deserve, but believe me,

your efforts are noticed, and without you, especially our operational staff, we

simply could not exist.

Clubs would not be here without their members, and I thank you for your custom

and loyalty throughout the last year. I look forward to being more involved with

and getting to know you and working together over the next twelve months as we

focus on reconnecting with our members and the community of Orange. 

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB 2021 ANNUAL REPORT
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NATHAN WHITESIDE 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Directors

G. Gentles (President)
L. Wright
G. Scott
R. Jones
R. Davidson
T. Flood
K. Quince
K. McGuire
I. Wotton      (resigned June 2021)

Principal Activities

The Short Term Objectives are as follows:
• To enhance the Club’s food & beverage offer;

•
•
• To ensure the Club actively promotes the achievement of the Club’s long term objectives;

•

The Long Term Objectives are as follows:
• To ensure the Club operates primarily for the benefit of members and the community at large;
•

•

•

• To ensure the continual growth and improvement of the Club’s sites, facilities and services.

To maintain modern and safe facilities and environs for all members, visitors and staff;
To maintain high quality customer service standard for all members of staff;

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your Directors present the financial report of Orange Ex-Services' Club Ltd for the financial year
ended 31 December 2021.

The principal activities of the company during the year were to provide sporting, social and
entertainment activities and amenities to the members of the company and guests from conducting
the business of a licensed club and motel. 

The following persons were directors of the company during the whole of the financial year and up
to the date of this report, unless otherwise stated: 

Page 1

To continue to proactively target the reduction of the organisation’s water and energy
consumption and waste reduction.

To ensure the Club embodies the sacrifice of our servicemen and women past, present and
future;
To ensure the Club is administered in accordance with the strong framework of rules, systems
and internal controls by which the Club is governed;
To ensure sustainable thinking, principles and practices are embedded into our core
operations; and

1
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Principal Activities (cont'd)

•

•

o Director and Staff Performance Assessments
o Financial Benchmarks
     1.    Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)
     2.    Liquid Ratio
     3.    Interest coverage
     4.    Return on Assets
     5.    Cost of Goods and Gross Profit Margins
     6.    Wages
     7.    Patron Visitations
     8.    Motel Occupancy Rates
o Energy Consumption
o Member Focus Groups

Significant Changes

No significant changes in the nature of these activities occurred during the year.

Operating Results

Meetings of Directors

Number 
Attended

Number eligible 
to attend

Number 
Attended

Number eligible 
to attend

G. Gentles 12 12 24 24

L. Wright 12 12 13 13

G. Scott 11 12 14 15

R. Jones 12 12 3 3

K. Quince 12 12 9 11

R. Davidson 11 12 13 14

T. Flood 12 12 14 15

K. McGuire 9 12 0 1

I. Wotton      6 6 5 5

Board Meetings Committee Meetings

Page 2

The Club conducts biennial strategic planning sessions with the date of the last Strategic
Planning session being held in October 2020. The strategic planning conducted by the Board
of Directors reviewed items such as; Club vision, SWOT analysis, political, environmental,
social & technological issues, competitor and target market analysis. The progress of each
strategic objective is reported on a monthly basis by the CEO to the Board of Directors.
The Club has also adopted many benchmarks and KPI reporting mechanisms to monitor the
performance of the business. The performance of the Club is measured through:

The surplus attributable to members for the year amounted to $2,248,328 [2020: surplus of
$3,389,727].

During the financial year, 34 meetings of Directors (including Committees of Directors) were held.
Attendances by each Director during the year were as follows:

To achieve the aforementioned objectives, the Company has adopted the following strategies and
measures of performance:

2
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Information on Directors 

Name: Graham Gentles JP GAICD (President) (Life Member)
Qualifications Bachelor of Business (Management) (early exit CSU)

Mechanical/Industrial Engineer (P.A. Management)
Graduate Member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors
Certificate in Governance for Not-For-Profits
(Governance Institute of Australia), Justice of the Peace

Club Experience

Mr Gentles has displayed an ongoing commitment to professional
development in the Club industry through regular attendance at
ClubsNSW and RSL & Services Clubs Association conferences and
meetings and is currently Vice President of Clubs NSW Central West
Region.

Page 3

Mr Gentles has obtained a Certificate from the Australian Institute of
Company Directors in Finance for Club Board Members. He is a
member of the Australian Air Force Association and is a past committee
member of the Orange Canobolas Lions Club. Mr Gentles is a Managing
Director of Kiambi Pty Ltd and business owner of Central Western
Bearing & Engineering Supplies.

Other Business & 
Community Experience

Mr Gentles was appointed to the Board in 2007 and has previously been
Chairman of the Sports & Community Committee. Mr Gentles has
previously held positions on the boards of the Millthorpe Bowling Club
and Bathurst Aero Club, including being the liquor licence holder of both
venues.

Mr Gentles has been an active member in Orange Ex-Services’ Club sub-
clubs for many years, including previously holding the positions of
President of the Orange Ex-Services’ Club Men’s Bowling Club, and
committee member of the Orange Ex-Services’ Country Club Men’s
Bowling Club and Orange Ex-Services’ Glee Club.
Mr Gentles is the Chairman of the Board of Directors as well as the
Executive Committee and the Finance, Audit, Compliance, Risk
Management & Sustainability Committee. He also serves on the Major
Projects Committee.

3
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Information on Directors (cont'd)
Name: Lindsay Wright (Senior Vice President)
Qualifications

Club Experience

Name: Graeme Scott (Junior Vice President)
Qualifications Master Builder – retired

Club Experience Mr Scott has served on the board since 2006 and has been a member of
several sub-committees and is the currently Chairman of the Major
Projects Committee and Membership & Disciplinary Committee. 
Mr Scott held the position of Junior Vice President from 2013 to 2018
and was re-elected to the role in 2021. Mr Scott regularly attends
industry body conferences and seminars and has completed the
mandatory director training. Mr Scott is also a past Director of the
Emu’s Rugby Club.

Other Business & 
Community Experience

Mr Scott is actively involved in the ex-service movement, serving in
various positions on the Orange RSL Sub-Branch, He has served as
Chairman of the ANZAC Day Committee and is a member of the
Vietnam Veterans Association.
Prior to retirement, Mr Scott was a commercial building contractor and
has been the Managing Director of Anson Industries Pty Ltd for 18
years. He is a past director of K.W. Scott Pty Ltd and Jangra Pty Ltd.
Mr Scott also owned and operated the management rights for several
holiday rental properties on the Gold Coast for 10 years.

Certificate in Governance for Not-For-Profits (Governance Institute of
Australia)

Other Business & 
Community Experience

Page 4

Manager (Retired)
Certificate in Governance for Not-For-Profits (Governance Institute of
Australia)

Mr Wright was appointed to the Board in 2009 and has been a member
of several sub-committees of the board. He is currently Chairman of the
Sports & Community Committee. He was elected as Senior Vice-
President in 2021.
Mr Wright has undertaken significant training and development during
the course of his directorship including the Club Managers Association &
Southern Cross University’s Corporate Governance Program and the
mandatory director training, in addition to regular attendance at industry
body conferences and seminars. He has also completed the RSL
Executive Training certificate.
Prior to retirement, Mr Wright was employed by the State Rail Authority
for 40 years with management responsibility for budgets and staffing
matters.  He is a Life Member of the Retired Railway Workers 
Mr Wright held the position of President of the Orange RSL Sub-Branch
and of the Central West Vietnam Veterans Association (Orange). He
also serves on the ANZAC Day committee. Mr Wright is also the Vice
President of the Victoria Hotel Sports & Social Club.
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Information on Directors (cont'd)

Name: Russell Jones (Life Member)
Qualifications Registered Nurse (List A), Diploma of Administration (Nursing)

Certificate in Governance for Not-For-Profits
(Governance Institute of Australia)

Club Experience

Name: Roslyn Davidson
Qualifications Endorsed Enrolled Nurse (Retired)
Club Experience

He has served on the Board of the Orange Ex-Services’ Club for 35
years, 5 of which as President and 6 as Senior Vice President. He has
served on several sub-committees of the board in his time as a director. 
Prior to 1987, he served as a Director of the Bloomfield Country Club
until it was amalgamated with the Orange Ex-Services’ Club Ltd.

He demonstrates an ongoing commitment to professional development
and education through regular attendance at ClubsNSW and RSL &
Services Clubs Association conferences and meetings.

Other Business & 
Community Experience

Mr Jones has been employed in the Health Industry for over 50 years,
including 23 years at Director of Nursing/Nurse Manager levels.
Mr Jones was the long serving Treasurer of the Orange Ex-Services’

Club Soccer Club.

Ms Davidson was elected to the Board in 2002 and has served on the
Membership and Disciplinary Committee and the Sports & Community
Committee.
She demonstrates an ongoing commitment to professional development
and education through regular attendance at ClubsNSW and RSL &
Services Clubs Association conferences and meetings.

Other Business & 
Community Experience

Ms Davidson is retired after being a nurse for over 40 years, primarily as
a theatre nurse. She served in the Royal Australian Nursing Corps for 10
years. Ms Davidson has been a member of the Orange RSL Sub-Branch
for many years, 10 of which she served as Senior Vice President, and
she also served as Secretary of the Sub-Branch. Ms Davidson is also the
Secretary of the Memorial Hall Trust and volunteers at Orange Health
Service. Ms Davidson has also served for many years on the Orange
ANZAC Day Committee.

Page 5
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Information on Directors (cont'd)

Name: Terrence Flood 
Qualifications

Club Experience

Name: Kenneth Quince JP
Qualifications Bachelor of Business

Justice of the Peace
Club Experience

Mr Flood held the position of Junior Vice President of the board from
2018 to 2021.

Page 6

He was appointed to the Board on two occasions in 2012 to 2014, and
again from 2018 to present. He has served on several sub-committees
of the board. He is a past president of the Orange Ex-Services’ Country
Club Men’s Golf Club.

Mr Quince demonstrates an ongoing commitment to professional
development and education through regular attendance at ClubsNSW
and RSL & Services Clubs Association conferences and meetings.

Other Business & 
Community Experience

He was employed in various roles including varied Executive Positions
and presiding over 7 directors and some 650 personnel. He was also
the Deputy General Manager, Darling Harbour Authority and the NSW
Commissioner of Payroll Tax. Board positions have included being
Chairperson of Australasian and State Computing and Administrative
Committees, and membership of the NSW Contracts Control Board. He
has also performed regular reviews of various Audit, OH&S, Commercial, 
Marketing, Efficiency and Economic practices during his professional
career.

Other Business & 
Community Experience

He was involved in emergency management in the local community as a
member of the Orange District Emergency Management Committee for
15 years, Orange City SES member for 35 years – 10 of which as
Controller, Orange Rescue Squad (VRA) for 40 years – 15 of which as
Officer in Charge. He also holds membership of the Australian Institute
of Emergency Services and the Volunteer Rescue Association.

Trades Welder/Supervisor and Test Technician (Electrolux)
Certificate in Governance for Not-For-Profits (Governance Institute of 
Australia)

He was elected as a director of the Club in 2014 after 48-years as an
Associate member. He has served on sub-committees of the board.

He demonstrates an ongoing commitment to professional development
and education through regular attendance at ClubsNSW and RSL &
Services Clubs Association conferences and meetings.
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Information on Directors (cont'd)

Name: Kevin McGuire
Qualifications

Club Experience

Name: Ian Wotton JP (resigned June 2021)
Qualifications Senior Business Banking Manager (retired)

Justice of the Peace
Club Experience

Members' Limited Liability

Page 7

The Company is incorporated under the Corporations Act 2001 and is a Company limited by
guarantee. If the Company is wound up, the constitution states that each member is required to
contribute up to $1.00 towards meeting any outstanding obligations of the entity. At 31 December
2021, the total amount that members of the Company are liable to contribute if the Company is
wound up is $18,653 (2020: $17,427).

Other Business & 
Community Experience

Worked in the National Australia Bank for 42 years in various
management positions around NSW, including the last 20 years in
Orange. Served as a Cub and Scout leader, in both Leeton and Orange
for 9 years. Current member of both North West and Clifton
Grove/Ophir Rural Fire Brigades for the past 13 years. During this time,
he had numerous deployments to major fires within NSW and Victoria.
He is also on the Board of “Lets Make Better” charity for the last three
years. Since retiring from the NAB, he has volunteered at the Salvation
Army two days per week.

Appointed to the Board in September 2019 he served on the Audit,
Finance, Risk Management & Sustainability Committee and Membership
& Disciplinary Committee. He resigned in June of 2021 for personal
reasons.
He undertook training and professional development in the Club
Industry including successfully completing the mandatory director 

Mr McGuire has served on the Board since 2019 and has served on the
Audit, Finance, Risk Management & Sustainability Committee. He has
attended industry seminars and meetings. He has undertaken training
and professional development in the Club Industry including successfully 
completing the mandatory director training and attending club industry
conferences and seminars.

Other Business & 
Community Experience

Mr McGuire is CEO of Wangarang Industries; Chair of NDIS CEO round-
table; member of Group 10 Rugby League judiciary; Regional chair of
National Disability Services for Upper and Central West regions;
Regional Manager Western NSW House with No Steps; Management
Committee of Forbes Meals on Wheels; Board Member Parkes/Forbes
Business Enterprise Centre; Advisory Board Parkes Leagues Club and
Board member and Treasurer of Parkes Railway Bowling Club.

Mr McGuire has a strong focus on governance having served on boards
of clubs and community-based organisations.
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors. 

Board Member:  .

Graham Gentles

Board Member:  .

Lindsay Wright

Dated this 16th day of March 2022

Page 8

A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as required under section 307C of the
Corporations Act 2001 is set out on page 9.

-JJ,t,J-� t/;:-- 
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(i)

(ii)

Name of Firm: Pigot Miller Wilson
Chartered Accountants

Lead Auditor: _________________________________________________________
Graham Spalding

Address: 65 Hill Street, Orange NSW 2800
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ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 

UNDER SECTION 307C OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001 
TO THE DIRECTORS OF ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD

We hereby declare, that to the best of our knowledge and belief, during the financial year
ended 31 December 2021 there have been no:

contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the
Corporations Act 2001  in relation to the audit; and

contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the
audit.

Dated this 16th day of March 2022
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Note 2021 2020

Club trading revenue 2                    24,818,811  23,429,053  
Cost of sales and direct costs (15,845,683) (14,981,632) 

8,973,128    8,447,421    
Other revenues 2                    1,255,928    2,555,399    

10,229,056  11,002,820  

Finance costs (6,302) (29,194) 
Occupancy expenses (681,585) (559,741) 
Marketing expenses (974,825) (155,754) 
Administration expenses 3(b) (4,590,323) (3,720,715) 
General expenses (993,336) (2,547,392) 
Other expenses from ordinary activities 3(f) 2,308 (2,134) 

2,984,993    3,987,890    
Income tax benefit/ (expense) 4(a) (736,665) (598,163) 

2,248,328 3,389,727

Other Comprehensive Income

Revaluation of land and buildings 10(a) 2,955,735    2,822,843    

Net change in fair values of financial assets 35,473 (8,088) 
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year 2,991,208    2,814,755    

4(b) 7,035 (4,420) 

2,998,243 2,810,335

5,246,571 6,200,062

 Profit before income tax 

 Gross profit 

 The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit 
or loss:

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or 
loss when specific conditions are met:

 Other comprehensive income attributable to 
members 

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable 
to members

Income tax benefit/(expense) on other 
comprehensive income

Net profit after tax for the year attributable to 
members

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
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ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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Note 2021 2020
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5 13,804,479   14,825,461  
Trade and other receivables 6 186,560        193,010        
Inventories 7 224,643        254,711        
Financial assets 8 800,508        731,987        
Other current assets 9 519,140        552,401        
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 15,535,330   16,557,570  

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Financial assets 8 -                 -                
Property, plant and equipment 10 66,043,171   59,375,660  
Investment Property 11 2,182,250     2,115,000     
Right of use assets 12 5,293             8,635            
Intangible Assets 13 1,644,664     1,684,548     
Deferred tax asset 17 102,759        152,563        
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 69,978,137   63,336,406  
TOTAL ASSETS 85,513,467   79,893,976  

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 14 2,917,970     2,221,720     
Borrowings 15 753,920        775,820        
Lease liabilities 16 3,419             3,285            
Current tax liabilities 17 321,359        218,247        
Provisions 18 1,867,028     1,593,270     
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 5,863,696     4,812,342     

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 15 625,000        1,375,000     
Lease liabilities 16 2,058             5,478            
Deferred tax liabilities 17 2,083,848     1,996,865     
Provisions 18 98,310           110,307        
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,809,216     3,487,650     
TOTAL LIABILITIES 8,672,912     8,299,992     

NET ASSETS 76,840,555   71,593,984  

EQUITY
Reserves 20,031,629   17,580,500  
Retained earnings 56,808,926   54,013,484  
TOTAL EQUITY 76,840,555   71,593,984  

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Page 11

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021
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Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit 
or loss:

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or 
loss when specific conditions are met:

 Other comprehensive income attributable to 
members 

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable 
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ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
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Retained 
Earnings

Financial 
Assets 

Reserve

Asset 
Revaluation 

Reserve Total
Balance as at 1 January 2020 45,889,221    63,225 15,251,458 61,203,904   
Comprehensive Income
Recognition of reserves attributable to 
amalgamation 4,190,018      -          -                 4,190,018      
Profit attributable to members 3,389,727 -          -                 3,389,727      

-   Net change in fair values on
    available for sale financial assets -                  (8,088) -                 (8,088) 
-   Revaluation of land and buildings -                  -          2,822,843 2,822,843      
-   Tax on unrealised gains -                  (4,420) -                 (4,420) 
Total other comprehensive income -                  (12,508) 2,822,843 2,810,335      

Transfer from reserves 544,518 -          (544,518) -                 

Balance as at 31 December 2020 54,013,484 50,717 17,529,783 71,593,984   
Comprehensive Income
Profit attributable to members 2,248,328 -          -                 2,248,328      

-   Net change in fair values on
    available for sale financial assets -                  35,473 -                 35,473
-   Revaluation of land and buildings -                  -          2,955,735 2,955,735      
-   Tax on unrealised gains -                  7,035 -                 7,035
Total other comprehensive income -                  42,508 2,955,735 2,998,243      

Transfer from reserves 547,114 -          (547,114) -                 

Balance as at 31 December 2021 56,808,926 93,225 19,938,404 76,840,555   

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Other comprehensive income for the 
year:

Other comprehensive income for the 
year:
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Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit 
or loss:
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loss when specific conditions are met:
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ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and members 26,081,189  26,080,564     
Payments to suppliers and employees (19,617,035) (14,430,650)
Dividends and distributions received 34,570 25,546
Interest received 31,772 93,173
Finance costs (31,618) (58,308)
Income Tax Paid (296,120) (398,047)
Net cash provided by operating activities 6,202,758 11,312,278

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 93,856          138,271          
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (6,536,348) (3,404,869)
Purchase of investment property -                -                  
Proceeds from sale of investments -                750                 
Purchase of intangible assets (9,348) (255,588)
Net cash provided by investing activities (6,451,840) (3,521,436)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of borrowings (771,900) (769,710)
Proceeds from borrowings -                -                  
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities (771,900) (769,710)

Net increase (decrease) in cash held (1,020,982) 7,021,132       
Cash at beginning of year 14,825,461  7,804,329       
Cash at end of year 5 13,804,479  14,825,461     
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ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021



ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB 2021 ANNUAL REPORT
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

O
R
A
N
G
E

 
E
X

-
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S

'
 
C
L
U
B

 
2
0
2
1

 
A
N
N
U
A
L

 
R
E
P
O
R
T

14

1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.
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1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
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ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

c)    Property, Plant & Equipment

Property

Plant and Equipment

Plant and equipment that have been contributed at no cost, or for nominal cost are valued at the
fair value of the asset at the date it is acquired. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 15

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable,
any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Freehold land and buildings are shown at their fair value based on periodic, but at least triennial,
valuations by external independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings.

Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis and are therefore carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. In the event the carrying
amount of plant and equipment is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, the carrying
amount is written down immediately to its estimated recoverable amount and impairment losses
are recognised either in profit or loss or as a revaluation decrease if the impairment losses relate
to a revalued asset. A formal assessment of recoverable amount is made when impairment
indicators are present.

In periods when the freehold land and buildings are not subject to independent valuation, the
directors conduct directors’ valuations to ensure the carrying amount for the land and buildings is
not materially different to the fair value.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of land and buildings are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the revaluation surplus in equity. Revaluation
decreases that offset previous increases of the same class of assets shall be recognised in other
comprehensive income under the heading of revaluation surplus. All other decreases are
recognised in profit and loss.

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

Freehold land and buildings that have been contributed at no cost, or for nominal cost, are
initially recognised and measured at the fair value of the asset at the date it is acquired.

As the revalued buildings are depreciated, the difference between depreciation recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, which is based on the revalued carrrying amount of the
asset, and the depreciation base on the asset's original cost is transferred from the revaluation
surplus to retained earnings.
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1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
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accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

c)    Property, Plant & Equipment (cont'd)
Depreciation

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:
Class of Fixed Asset Depreciation
Plant & Equipment 1 - 50%
Motor Vehicles 8.33 - 25%
Leasehold Improvements 5 - 100%
Buildings & Ground Improvements 1 - 5%

d)     Investment Properties

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets, excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their useful lives to the economic entity commencing from the time the asset is
held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the
unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.

The assets’ residual lives and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s

carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount.
These gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. When
revalued assets are sold, amounts included in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset are
transferred to retained earnings.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, including the
corresponding tax effect. Fair values are based on periodic, but at least triennial, valuations by
external independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation for such properties.

In periods when the investment properties are not subject to independent valuation, the directors
conduct directors’ valuations to ensure the carrying amount for the investment properties is not
materially different to the fair value.

Investment properties, comprising freehold business premises, are held to generate long-term
rental yields and future club building expansions. All tenant leases are on an arms-length basis.

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report
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1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

e)     Intangible Assets
Poker Machine Entitlements

Software

Franchise Establishment Fee

f)     Impairment of Assets

Impairment testing is performed annually for goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives.

g)     Borrowing Costs

All other borrowing costs are recognised in expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

At the end of each reporting period, the entity reviews the carrying values of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been
impaired. If such as indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the asset’s carrying value. Any
excess of the asset’s carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the income and
expenditure statement.

The poker machine entitlements shown in the accounts represent licences purchased by the club.
The company holds other poker machine entitlements that potentially have a market value. If the
company were to be wound up or the number of entitlements were in excess of requirements
then the poker machine entitlements would be able to be sold at the prevailing market price.
Poker machine entitlements are intangible assets classified with an indefinite life. The intangible
asset is subject to annual impairment testing to the higher of fair value less related costs to sell
and value in use.

Software is recorded at cost. It has a finite life and is carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. The company has estimated the useful life to be
between 2 and 5 years. It is assessed annually for impairment.

The Franchise Establishment Fee paid to AAPC Properties Pty Ltd has a finite life and is carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. The company has estimated the
useful life at 15 years. It is assessed annually for impairment.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the entity
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to prepare for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Where the qualifying asset will subsequently be measured at fair value the borrowing
costs are recognised in expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 17



ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB 2021 ANNUAL REPORT
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

O
R
A
N
G
E

 
E
X

-
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S

'
 
C
L
U
B

 
2
0
2
1

 
A
N
N
U
A
L

 
R
E
P
O
R
T

18

1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

h) Employee Benefits
Short Term Employee Benefits

Other long-term employee provisions

i) Provisions

j) Cash and Cash Equivalents

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 18

Provision is made for the company’s obligation for short-term employee benefits. Short-term
employee benefits are benefits (other than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled
wholly before 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees
render the related service, including wages, salaries and sick leave. Short-term employee
benefits are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid when the obligation is
settled, plus related on-costs. The Company's obligations for short-term employee benefits such
as wages and salaries are presented as current trade and other payables in the Statement of
Financial Position.

Provisions are recognised when the company has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of
past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that
outflow can be reliably measured. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts
required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. 

Provision is made for employees’ long service leave and annual leave entitlements not
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in
which the employees render the related service. Other long-term employee benefits are
measured at the present value of the expected future payments to be made to employees.
Expected future payments incorporate anticipated future wage and salary levels, durations of
service and employee departures, and are discounted at rates determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have maturity dates
that approximate the terms of the obligations. Upon the re-measurement for other long-term
employee benefits, the net change in the obligation is recognised in profit or loss as a part of
employee benefits expense. The company’s obligations for long-term employee benefits are
presented as non-current employee provisions in its Statement of Financial Position, except
where the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period, in which case the obligations are presented as
current liabilities.
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1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

k) Trade and Other Receivables

k) Trade and Other Receivables (cont'd)

l) Leases

-

-

-

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

The Company considers whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as "a
contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a
period of time in exchange for consideration". To apply this definition the Company assesses
whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are whether:

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope
of the contract;
the Company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of
use. The Company assess whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the
asset is used throughout the period of use.

Page 19

At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability
on the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial
measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate
of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments
made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received).

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the
end of the lease term. The Company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when
such indicators exist.

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any provision for impairment. 

At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the
lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that
rate is readily available or the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.

the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or
implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to the Company;

Trade and other receivables include amounts due from customers for goods sold in the ordinary
course of business. Receivables that are expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of
the reporting period are classified as current assets. All other receivables are classified as non-
current assets.
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1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

l) Leases (cont'd)

m) Financial Instruments

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised
on the trade date, i.e., the date that the company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-
use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments
(including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably
certain to be exercised.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased
for interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes
in in-substance fixed payments.

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 20

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s

contractual cash flow characteristics and the company’s business model for managing them. With
the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the company has applied the practical expedient, the company initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through
OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’

on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is
performed at an instrument level.

The company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
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1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

m) Financial Instruments (cont'd)
Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

- Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
-

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

-

-

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (debt instruments)

-

-

The company’s debt instruments at fair value through OCI includes investments in quoted debt
instruments included under other non-current financial assets.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR)
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

The company’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables.

The company measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if both of the following
conditions are met:

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 21

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling, and
The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income and impairment losses or
reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as
for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised
in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in OCI is recycled to
profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the company. The company measures financial assets at
amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows, and
The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
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1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

m) Financial Instruments (cont'd)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Derecognition

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, and
-

Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Subsequent measurement - loans and borrowings
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading,
financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial
assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI, as
described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial
position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the company’s statement of
financial position) when:

The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and borrowings or payables, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings
including bank overdraft.

Page 22
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1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

m) Financial Instruments (cont'd)

This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Derecognition

n) Revenue and Other Income

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).

o) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenue from the sale of goods or the rendering of a service is recognised upon the delivery of
goods or service to customers. Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Interest revenue is recognised using the effective
interest rate method, which, for floating rate financial assets is the rate inherent in the
instrument. Dividend revenue is recognised when the right to receive a dividend has been
established. The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is calculated as the
difference between the carrying amount of the asset at the time of disposal and the net proceeds
on disposal (including incidental costs) and is recognised as other revenue at the date control of
the asset passes to the buyer.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where
the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office. The net amount of
GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in
the Statement of Financial Position.

Page 23

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

This is the category most relevant to the company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from
investing or financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are presented
as operating cash flows included in receipts from customers or payments to suppliers.
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1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

p) Trade and Other Payables

q) Comparative Figures

r) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimation of useful lives of assets

Employee benefits provision

Impairment of indefinite life intangible assets

Trade and other payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period for
goods and services received by the company during the reporting period which remain unpaid.
The balance is recognised as a current liability with the amount normally being paid within 30
days of the recognition of the liability (or 90 days where extended trading terms have been
approved by the supplier).

Where required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to
changes in presentation for the current financial year. 

The directors evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial report based on
historical knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable
expectation of future events and are based on current trends and economic data, obtained both
externally and within the company.

The company determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation
charges for its property, plant and equipment. The useful lives could change significantly as a
result of technical innovations or some other event. The depreciation and amortisation charge will
increase where the useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold will be written off or written down. 

As discussed in the accounting policies, the liability for employee benefits expected to be settled
more than 12 months from the reporting date are recognised and measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash flows to be made in respect of all employees at the reporting date.
In determining the present value of the liability, estimates of attrition rates and pay increases
through promotion and inflation have been taken into account.

The company assesses impairment of indefinite life intangible assets at each reporting date by
evaluating conditions specific to the company and to the particular asset that may lead to
impairment. If an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined.
This involves fair value less costs of disposal or value-in-use calculations, which incorporate a
number of key estimates and assumptions.

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report
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1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

r) Critical accounting estimates and judgements (cont'd)
Key judgement - valuation of Land and Buildings

Key Estimates – Fair Value of Investment Property 

Key Judgment – Deferred Tax Balances 

Key Judgment – Mortuary Benefit Provision

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 25

The freehold land and buildings were independently valued at $51,340,000 as at 28 August 2020
by Nicholas Brady Valuations. The valuation was based on the fair value less cost to sell. The
critical assumptions adopted in determining the valuation included the location of land and
buildings, the current level of demand for the land and buildings in the area and the recent sales
data for similar properties. At 31 December 2021, Directors have assessed the value of land &
buildings as $56,967,742 plus the cost of building works in progress. The basis of this was the
prior year valuation plus nominal inflation, and any completed works. The revaluation resulted in
valuation increment of $2,888,485 of Land and Buildings.

The investment properties were independently valued at $2,115,000 as at 28 August 2020 by
Nicholas Brady Valuations. The valuation was based on the fair value less cost to sell. The critical
assumptions adopted in determining the valuation included the location of land and buildings, the
current level of demand for the land and buildings in the area and the recent sales data for similar
properties. At 31 December 2021, the Directors have assessed the land and building as
$2,182,250 based on additional spending on certain properties during the year. The directors
have applied a conservative revaluation reflective of strategic intention for investment properties.
The revaluation resulted in a valuation increment of $67,250 of Investment Property.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences only if the Club
considers it is possible that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise temporary
differences and losses.

A provision has been recognised for liabilities which may arise as a result of the mortuary benefit
arrangement in place for participating members over the age of 80. In calculating the present
value of future cash flows in respect to mortuary benefit claims, mortality estimates and the time
value of money have been taken into account.
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1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

2 Revenue and other income 2021 2020

Revenue
  - Sale of goods 5,181,916      5,026,698      
  - Services revenue 19,547,007   18,357,798    
  - Rental income from property investment 89,888           44,557           
Total Club Trading Revenue 24,818,811   23,429,053    

Non-trading Revenue
  - Dividends received 63                  32                   
  - Interest received from financial assets at 
    amortised cost 31,772           93,173           
  - Distributions received 34,507           25,514           
  - Government Subsidies - COVID-19 719,064         2,052,779      
  - Subscriptions 98,014           101,021         
  - Other 323,825         215,776         
Total Non-trading Revenue 1,207,245      2,488,295      

Other Income
  - gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant &
    equipment 48,683           67,104           
Total Other Income 48,683           67,104           

Total Other Revenue 1,255,928      2,555,399      

3 Expenses

(a) Cost of Sales and Direct Costs
  - Cost of sales 1,923,848      1,803,106      
  - Direct costs and wages 13,921,835   13,178,526    

15,845,683   14,981,632    

(b) Administration Expenses
Salaries and Wages 2,655,454      2,544,083      
Superannuation 301,264         299,928         
Leave Provisions 850,209         305,928         
Training 52,554           47,225           
Payroll Tax 352,429         163,144         
Fringe Benefits Tax 24,116           40,807           
Other 354,296         319,600         

4,590,322      3,720,715      

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report
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1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

3 Expenses (cont'd) 2021 2020
(c) Depreciation of Non-Current Assets

Amusement Machines 1,033,242      933,230         
Plant and Equipment 1,032,633      1,133,024      
Buildings 547,114         544,518         
Total depreciation costs 2,612,989      2,610,772      

(d) Amortisation of Non-Current Assets
Wade Park lease 12,122           11,560           
Country Club lease 82,151           82,294           
Leased Gaming Machines 4,887             43,980           
Total amortisation costs 99,160           137,834         

(e) Amortisation of Intangible Assets
Software and Franchise Fees 49,232           59,688           

(f) Bad and Doubtful Debts
Bad debts (recovered)/ written off (2,308) -                 

(g) Finance Costs
Business Loan 25,316           29,416           
Equipment Loan 6,302             28,892           

31,618           58,308           

4 Income Tax Expense
(a)  

Current Tax 592,844 355,574
Deferred Tax 136,786         244,314         

729,630         599,888         

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 27

The Components of tax expense compromise the following
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1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4 Income Tax Expense (cont'd) 2021 2020
(b)

746,248 1,096,670      

Add:
 - Other Non Deductible Items -                 (6,677) 

Less:
 - Member only income and expenditure (164,150) 1,375,682
 - Tax losses and timing difference not recognised 180,768 (892,621) 
 - Tax losses recouped -                 2,624             

Income tax attributable to entity 729,630         604,308         

7,035 (4,420) 

736,665         599,888         

5 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash at Bank and on Hand 13,804,479   14,825,461    

6 Trade and Other Receivables
Current
Trade receivables 108,660         113,400         
Provision for Doubtful Debts (5,250) (5,250) 

103,410         108,150         
Add:
Other receivables
- Accrued income 79,967           81,450           
- Other 3,183             3,410             
Total Trade and Other Receivables 186,560         193,010         

a) Provision for Impairment of Receivables

Provision for impairment at 1 January 5,250             5,250             
Charge for year -                 -                 
Written off -                 -                 
Provision for impairment at 31 December 5,250             5,250             

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 28

Movement in the provision for impairment of receivables is as 
follows:

Prima facie tax payable on profit (loss) before income tax at 
25% (2020: 27.5%)

Income tax expense/(benefit) relating to Other Comprehensive 
Income at 25% (2020: 27.5%)

Income tax/(benefit) attributable to Comprehensive Income
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1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

7 Inventories 2021 2020
At Cost
- Stock on Hand – trading 220,693         247,568         
- Stock on Hand – non-trading 3,950             7,143             

224,643         254,711         

8 Financial Assets
Current
Financial assets at fair value through OCI 800,508         731,987         

Non-Current
Financial assets at fair value through OCI -                 -                 

800,508         731,987         

Financial assets at fair value through OCI comprise:
Investments at fair value
- managed investment portfolio 798,080         729,559         
- shares in listed corporations 2,428             2,428             

800,508         731,987         

Investments, at cost
- shares in Other corporations -                 -                 

9 Other Current Assets
Current
Prepayments 497,827         523,973         
Current tax receivable -                 -                 
Deposits lodged 21,313           28,428           

519,140         552,401         

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 29

Financial assets at fair value through OCI comprise investments in the ordinary share capital of
various entities or units in unit trusts. There are no fixed returns or fixed maturity dates
attached to these investments.

Investments in unit trusts and listed corporations have been determined based on the closing
unit or bid prices at the end of the reporting period.
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1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

10 Property, Plant and Equipment 2021 2020
LAND AND BUILDINGS
Freehold land at Directors’ valuation 8,961,750      8,535,000      

Buildings at:
Independent/ (directors') valuation 48,005,992   42,805,000    
Building Works in Progress 2,458,827      444,404         
Total Buildings 50,464,819   43,249,404    

Total Land and Buildings 59,426,569   51,784,404    

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant and Equipment - at Cost 22,356,302   21,503,348    
Less Accumulated Depreciation (15,837,769) (14,327,205) 
Total Plant and Equipment 6,518,533      7,176,143      

Leasehold Assets & Improvements - at Cost 529,344         1,992,560      
Less Provision for Amortisation (431,275) (1,577,447) 

98,069           415,113         

Total Plant and Equipment 6,616,602      7,591,256      

Total Property, Plant and Equipment 66,043,171   59,375,660    

a) Movements in Carrying Amounts

Leasehold
Plant & Assets &

Land Buildings Equipment Improvements Total

8,535,000   43,249,404   7,176,143    415,113            59,375,660       

Additions 5,052,945      1,453,439    29,964              6,536,348         

Disposals (45,173) (45,173) 

426,750      2,709,584      (247,849) 2,888,485         

Depreciation expense -               (547,114) (2,065,875) (99,160) (2,712,149) 

8,961,750   50,464,819   6,518,534    98,068              66,043,171       

Balance at beginning of 
the year

Net revaluation 
increment/ transfers

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 30

Movement in carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the
beginning and the end of the current financial year:
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1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

10 Property, Plant and Equipment (cont'd)

11 Investment Property 2021 2020
Balance at beginning of year 2,115,000      2,725,000      
Additions -                 -                 
Fair value adjustments (67,250) (610,000) 

2,182,250      2,115,000      

12 Right of use assets
Right of use - equipment
Balance at beginning of year 8,635             -                 
Additions -                 11,142           
Disposals -                 -                 
Amortisation of Capitalised Costs (3,342) (2,507) 
Impairment -                 -                 

5,293             8,635             

Page 31

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

The fair value model is applied to all investment properties. Investment properties are
independently revalued at least every three years with the latest valuation undertaken in
August 2020. Values are based on an active liquid market value and are performed by a
registered independent valuer. Directors’ valuations are prepared at each balance date where
an independent valuation has not been obtained. The 2021 Directors Valuation was based on
the independent valuation from, August 2020, adjusted for inflation.

The freehold land and buildings were independently valued at $51,340,000 as at 28 August
2020 by Nicholas Brady Valuations. In the current year the revaluation was based on a
conservative estimate of the movement in the commercial property market in the 16 months
since the last formal valuation in August 2020, taking into account a marginal increase for
inflation, as well as asset improvements in this time. The Directors are satisfied that the carrying
value does not exceed the recoverable amount of land and buildings at 31 December 2021.The
revaluation resulted in a revaluation increment of $2,888,485 being recognised in the asset
revaluation reserve for the year ended 31 December 2021.

During the prior year the company adopted AASB 116 - Leases with an initial application date
of 1 July 2019. The entity applied the prospective transition method whereby comparative
figures were not restated. This required that right of use assets were recognised for all lease
contracts that were not considered either immaterial or short-term leases. As a result, assets
were recognised for 1 lease contract entered into between the company and third parties. The
effects of this is disclosed in both this note and note 16 below.
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1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

13 Intangible Assets 2021 2020
Poker Machine Entitlements, at fair value 2007 480,000         480,000         
Poker Machine Entitlements, at cost 1,112,264      1,112,264      
Total Poker Machine Entitlements 1,592,264      1,592,264      

Software, at amortised cost 34,345           72,564           
Franchise Establishment Fee, at amortised cost 18,055           19,720           

1,644,664      1,684,548      

Poker Franchise
Machine Establishment

Entitlements Software Fees Total
Balance at beginning of the year 1,592,264      72,564          19,720              1,684,548         

Additions -                 9,348            -                     9,348                 

Disposals -                 -                -                     -                     

Amortisation -                 (47,567) (1,665) (49,232) 

1,592,264      34,345          18,055              1,644,664         

Impairment calculation for poker machine entitlements

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 32

At the end of the reporting period the Company assessed the recoverable amount of poker
machine entitlements based on the value in use methodology. The Company uses the forecast
daily net income, operating expenses for all gaming entitlements and calculates the value of the
entitlements for which it has paid for. The value in use recoverable amount for each entitlement
is calculated by dividing the total value of the entitlements with the actual number of
entitlements. The value thus arrived, was in excess of the carrying value and accordingly no
impairment losses were recognised.

The Club, Wentworth and Country Club have been certified with 223, 15 and 10 poker machine
entitlements respectively. Of the 223 poker machine entitlements certified, the Club has
purchased 80 and the remainder was allocated to the Club prior to 2005. Only those
entitlements purchased are reflected in the Statement of Financial Position.

Poker machine entitlements are considered intangibles in accordance with AASB 138
Intangibles and are considered to have an indefinite life and accordingly are not amortised. At
31 December 2019 no active market existed therefore the existing entitlements are valued at
the most recent market value of $16,000 each as determined at 31 December 2007. The 2009,
2012, 2013, 2014 and 2017 acquisitions are valued at cost. The entitlements obtained via the
amalgamation with Wentworth Golf Club are valued and recorded at the amounts that these
were recognised in their accounting records.
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1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

14 Trade and Other Payables 2021 2020
Current
Trade Creditors 1,306,390      652,113         
Sundry payables and accrued expenses 1,017,270      961,191         
Subscriptions in advance 278,229         307,257         
Income in advance 120,602         125,138         
GST and withholding taxes payable 195,479         176,021         

2,917,970      2,221,720      

(a) Financial liabilities at amortised cost classified as trade and other payables

Trade and other payables - current 2,917,970      2,221,720      
Less:
      Accrued expenses 616,839         636,297         
      Subscriptions in advance 278,229         307,257         
      Income in advance 120,602         125,138         
      Rental bonds 11,250           -                 
      GST and withholding taxes payable 195,479         176,021         
Financial liabilities as trade and other payables 1,695,571      977,007         

15 Borrowings
Current
Secured Liabilities
      Business Loan 750,000         750,000         
      Equipment Lease 3,920             25,820           
Current Borrowings 753,920         775,820         

Non-Current
Secured Liabilities
      Business Loan 625,000         1,375,000      
      Equipment Lease -                 -                 
Non Current Borrowings 625,000         1,375,000      

Total Borrowings 1,378,920      2,150,820      

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 33

Borrowings are secured by a General Security Agreement covering the whole assets of the
entity and a registered first mortgage over Lot 200/1191450.



ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB 2021 ANNUAL REPORT
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

O
R
A
N
G
E

 
E
X

-
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S

'
 
C
L
U
B

 
2
0
2
1

 
A
N
N
U
A
L

 
R
E
P
O
R
T

34

1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

15 Borrowings (cont'd) 2021 2020
Financing Arrangements
The Company has access to the following lines of credit:
Total facilities available
      Business Loan 1,375,000      2,125,000      
      Equipment Lease 200,000         200,000         

1,575,000      2,325,000      
Facilities utilised at reporting date:
      Business Loan 1,375,000      2,125,000      
      Equipment Loan 3,920             25,820           

1,378,920      2,150,820      

16 Lease liabilities
Current
Office equipment 3,419             3,285             

3,419             3,285             
Non-current
Office equipment 2,058             5,478             

2,058             5,478             

Total lease liabilities 5,477             8,763             

The total cash outflow of leases not capitalised
     - Short term equipment leases 16,958           9,242             

During the prior year the company adopted AASB 116 - Leases with an initial application date
of 1 July 2019. The entity applied the prospective transition method whereby comparative
figures were not restated. This required that right of use assets were recognised for all lease
contracts that were not considered either immaterial or short-term leases. As a result, assets
were recognised for 1 lease contract entered into between the company and third parties.

These leases were not classified as right of use assets and liabilities as they were considered
short-term leases when considering the contractual obligations of the relevant lease
agreements.

The weighted average remaining lease term of capitalised right of use lease obligations for the
current year was 31 months, while the weighted average discount rate was 4%. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 34

The facility is based on a fixed rate of 2.62% for $1m and the remainder at a variable rates. The
total effective interest rate at year end was 1.9933%. Repayment terms are $62,500 per month
which commenced in January 2016. A 1.64% facility fee is payable on the available limit.
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1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

17 Tax 2021 2020
(a) Liabilities

Current
Income tax 321,359         218,247

Non-Current
Deferred tax liability comprises:
  - Revaluation adjustments taken directly to equity 27,214           20,179           
  - Fair value gain adjustments and tax allowances 
    relating to property, plant and equipment 1,971,583      1,883,472      
-  Timing differences at 25% (2020: 27.5%) 85,051           93,214           

2,083,848      1,996,865      

(b) Assets
Non-Current
-  Revenue Tax losses at 25% (2020: 27.5%) -                     -                 
-  Timing differences at 25% (2020: 27.5%) 102,759         152,563         

102,759         152,563         

(c) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are attributed to the following:

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Property, Plant 

& Equipment -        -                  2,034,756        1,951,824 (2,034,756) (1,951,824) 

Software -        -                  1,392                1,921 (1,392) (1,921) 

Employee 

Entitlements 95,737 121,364         -                    -                   95,737 121,364

Provisions & 

Accruals 6,803 30,849           -                    -                   6,803 30,849

Prepayments -        -                  495                   543 (495) (543) 

Investments -        -                  27,214              20,179 (27,214) (20,179) 

Accrued

Income & Other 219 350                 19,992              22,398 (19,773) (22,048) 

102,759 152,563 2,083,848 1,996,865 (1,981,089) (1,844,302) 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 35

ASSETS LIABILITIES NET



ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB 2021 ANNUAL REPORT
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

O
R
A
N
G
E

 
E
X

-
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S

'
 
C
L
U
B

 
2
0
2
1

 
A
N
N
U
A
L

 
R
E
P
O
R
T

36

1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

17 Tax (cont'd)
(d) Movement in Temporary Differences during the year

Property, Plant & Equipment (1,951,824) 82,932 -                     (2,034,756) 

Software (1,921) (529) -                     (1,392) 

Employee Entitlements 121,364         25,627 -                     95,737               

Provisions & Accruals 30,849           24,046 -                     6,803                 

Prepayments (543) (48) -                     (495) 

Investments (20,179) -                7,035 (27,214) 

Accrued Income & Other (22,048) (2,275) -                     (19,773) 

(1,844,302) 129,752 7,035 (1,981,089) 

(e) Deferred Tax Asset and Liability Not Recognised

2021 2020
(i) Deferred Tax Assets

Realised capital losses at 25% (2020: 27.5%) 906,815         999,279         
Unrealised capital losses at 25% (2020: 27.5%) 191,468         269,239         

1,098,282      1,268,518      
(ii) Deferred Tax Liabilities

Timing difference: buildings at 25% (2020: 27.5%) 898,425         890,198         

18 Provisions
Current
Provision for Employee Benefits 1,852,028      1,578,270      
Provision for Mortuary Benefit Arrangement 15,000           15,000           

1,867,028      1,593,270      
Non-Current
Provision for Employee Benefits 88,310           100,307         
Provision for Mortuary Benefit Arrangement 10,000           10,000           

98,310           110,307         

Total Provisions 1,965,338      1,703,577      

 Balance at 31 
Dec 2020 

 Recognised 
in Income 

 Recognised in 
Equity 

 Balance at 31 
Dec 2021 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities in relation to carried forward capital losses and temporary
differences are not recognised, as it is not probable or certain that the Club will dispose of
sufficient capital assets to recover the amount of the capital loss. The outstanding capital loss
would only be recoverable on sale of post-GST capital assets or business elements.

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 36
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1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

18 Provisions (cont'd)
Employee Provisions

Provision for Mortuary Benefit Arrangement

19 Reserves
Financial Assets Reserve

Asset Revaluations Reserve
The asset revaluation reserve records the revaluations of non-current assets.

In calculating the present value of future cash flows in respect to annual leave and long service
leave, the probability of leave being taken is based on historical data. The measurement and
recognition criteria relating to employee benefits have been included in Note 1 to this report.

A provision has been recognised for liabilities which may arise as a result of the mortuary
benefit arrangement in place for participating members over the age of 80. In calculating the
present value of future cash flows in respect to mortuary benefit claims, mortality estimates and 
the time value of money have been taken into account.

Employee provisions represent amounts accrued for annual leave, long service leave and
additional rostered days off (ARDOs). The current portion for this provision includes the total
amount accrued for annual leave and ARDO entitlements and the amounts accrued for long
service leave entitlements that have vested due to employees having completed the required
period of service.

Based on past experience, the Company does not expect the full amount of annual leave or
long service leave balances classified as current liabilities to be settled within the next 12
months and those amounts not expected to be settled are regarded as “long term” and are
measured in accordance with the AASB 119 requirement for “long-term employee benefits”.

This has resulted in discounting to present value any annual leave not expected to be taken
within the next 12 months. However, these amounts must be classified as current liabilities
since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of these amounts
in the event employees wish to use their leave entitlement.

The non-current portion for this provision includes amounts accrued for long service leave
entitlements that have not yet vested in relation to those employees who have not yet
completed the required service period.

The financial assets reserve records revaluation increments and decrements (that do not
represent impairment write-downs) that relate to financial assets that are classified as fair value
through OCI.

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 37
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1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

20 Capital Commitments 2021 2020
Operating Lease Commitments – as lessee
Payable – minimum lease payments
  - not later than 12 months 854                814                 
  - between 12 months and 5 years 2,915             3,257             
  - greater than 5 years 2,463             2,815             
Minimum lease payments 6,232             6,886             

Operating Lease Commitments – as lessor
Nil

Capital Expenditure Commitments

  - payable not later than 12 months 4,900,000      490,000         

The commitments relate to planned improvements to gaming machines.

21 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

  - Balance of guarantee to TAB 5,000 5,000
  - Balance of Gaming Machine linked jackpot floats 132,625 121,906

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 38

Operating leases relate to non-cancellable property leases over Forest Rd and Wade Park
Tennis Complex. These leases have remaining terms of between one (1) years and fifteen (15)
years, with renewal options included in some cases.

The Club has entered into property leases on its investment property portfolio. These leases are
now on a month-to-month basis. Some leases include a clause to enable upward revisions of
the rental charge on an annual basis according to CPI increases.

Estimates of the potential financial effect of contingent 
liabilities that may become payable:

Estimated capital expenditure commitments contracted for at balance date but not provided 
for:

Float amounts are payable only when won by a player while the link is still in place. Termination
of the link may occur at the discretion of management at any time.
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1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

22 Related Party Transactions

n

n

n

n

Related Party Transactions 2021 2020
(a) Purchase of goods and services

Central West Bearings and Engineering Pty Ltd 11,426 15,925
Freewright Pty Ltd T/A Café Latte 27,286              57,569               

(b) Sponsorships and Grants Provided
Wangarang Industries Limited -                     6,200                 

(c) Receivable from and payable to related parties
Payable to Central West Bearings and Engineering Pty Ltd 1,486 -                     
Payable to Freewright Pty Ltd T/A Café Latte 3,366                 4,119                 

Directors and Management of the Company are provided with meals at meetings and
conferences. Travel, accommodation and meals for Directors and Management of the Company
are provided when Directors and Management attend conferences and seminars, as approved
by members at the Annual General Meeting.

From time to time Key Management Personnel use the Club for private social
purposes but on normal commercial terms and conditions.

Any employees related to Directors or Management are employed on an arm’s length basis
under the Registered and Licensed Clubs Award as at 31 December 2021.

Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more
favourable than those available to other parties unless otherwise stated. Transactions with Key
Management Personnel:

Central Western Bearings and Engineering Pty Limited, a Company controlled by
Mr G. Gentles (Director) has from time to time supplied the Company with various
mechanical items and repairs.
During the prior year the Club provided support to Wangarang Industries Limited,
a Company of which Mr K. McGuire is the CEO, by the way of Club Grants and
Sponsorship.
During the year the Club outsourced its catering in the Motel, as wage costs
rendered it unprofitable to perform this internally. Various quotations were
obtained, including availability of the providers to provide the products at the
times required. The club appointed Freewright Pty Ltd T/A Café Latte, who's
owners are related to Lindsay Wright, a director of the company.

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 39
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1.   Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a)     Income Tax

b)    Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’), and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate
for not-for-profit entities. 

The financials statements, except for the cash flow information have been prepared on an
accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement
at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts
presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 14 March, 2021 by the directors of the
company. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for the year adjusted for any
non-assessable or disallowed items. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and adjusted to take into account the principal
of mutuality. 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 14

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability, excluding a. business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it
relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted
directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the
assumption that no adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation
that the company will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be
realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the law.

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

23 Key Management Personnel

2021 2020

1,153,534 1,211,777

24 Financial Risk Management

Financial Assets 2021 2020
Cash and cash equivalents 13,804,479 14,825,461
Financial assets at fair value through OCI (debt instruments) 800,508 731,987
Trade and other receivables 186,560 193,010
Total Financial Assets 14,791,547 15,750,458

Financial Liabilities
Loans and borrowings
    Trade payables 1,695,571 977,007
    Borrowings 1,378,920 2,150,820
Total Financial Liabilities 3,074,491 3,127,827

25 Events after Balance Date 

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 40

Key management personnel, being those persons having authority and responsibility for the
planning, directing and controlling of the activities of the Company, directly or indirectly,
including any Director, is considered key management personnel.

Benefits and payments include cash salary and non-monetary benefits. Non-monetary benefits
represent the value of Reportable Fringe Benefits for the Fringe Benefits Tax year ended 31st
March, and annual leave and long service leave accrued or utilised during the financial year.

Benefits and payments made to the Directors and Other Key 
management personnel

The directors are not aware of any significant events since the end of the reporting period.

The Company’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, short-term
investments, accounts receivable and payable, and bank loans.

The main purpose of non-derivative financial instruments is to raise finance for the Company’s

operations. The Company does not have any derivative instruments at 31 December 2021.

The totals for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 9 as
detailed in the accounting policies to these financial statements, are as follows:
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ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

26 Company details

The registered office of the company is:
ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
231 Anson Street
ORANGE NSW 2800

The principal place of business of the company is:
231 Anson Street
ORANGE NSW 2800

This should be read in conjunction with the attached audit report

Page 41
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Board Member:  .

Graham Gentles

Board Member:  .

Lindsay Wright

Dated this 16th day of March 2022

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Page 42

ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD
A.B.N 35 001 027 710

STATEMENT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with a resolution of Directors of Orange Ex-Services' Club Ltd, the Directors
declare that:

1. comply with Accounting Standards; and

In the Directors' opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be
able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 10 to 41 are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001 and:

2. give a true and fair view of the Company's financial position as at 31 December 2021 and
of the performance for the year ended on that date.

01� 
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Opinion

In our opinion:

a.

b. complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Basis for Opinion

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD

A.B.N 35 001 027 710

We have audited the financial report of Orange Ex-Services' Club Ltd (the Company), which
comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial report, including a summary of significant accounting policies,
and the statement by board of directors.

the accompanying financial report of Orange Ex-Services' Club Ltd, is in accordance with the
Corporations Act, including: 

giving a true and fair view of the company’s financial position as at 31 December 2021 and of
its performance for the year ended on that date; and

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Report section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical
Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are
relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has
been given to the directors of Orange Ex-Services' Club Ltd, would be in the same terms if given to
the directors as at the time of this auditor’s report.

Opinion

In our opinion:

a.

b. complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Basis for Opinion

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ORANGE EX-SERVICES' CLUB LTD

A.B.N 35 001 027 710

We have audited the financial report of Orange Ex-Services' Club Ltd (the Company), which
comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial report, including a summary of significant accounting policies,
and the statement by board of directors.

the accompanying financial report of Orange Ex-Services' Club Ltd, is in accordance with the
Corporations Act, including: 

giving a true and fair view of the company’s financial position as at 31 December 2021 and of
its performance for the year ended on that date; and

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Report section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical
Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are
relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has
been given to the directors of Orange Ex-Services' Club Ltd, would be in the same terms if given to
the directors as at the time of this auditor’s report.
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Other information

Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Report

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 

The Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information in the Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2021, but does
not include the financial report and the auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

The Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report
and have determined that the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the financial report, are
appropriate to meet the requirements of the Corporations Act and are appropriate to meet the
needs of the members. The Board of Directors’ responsibility also includes such internal controls as
the Board of Directors determine necessary to enable the preparation of a financial report that is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibility

Name of Firm: Pigot Miller Wilson
Chartered Accountants

Lead Auditor:
__________________________________________
Graham Spalding CA

Address: 65 Hill Street
Orange NSW 2800

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report is located at the
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at:
http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar4.pdf. This description forms part of our
Auditor’s Report.

Dated this 16th day of March 2022
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CORE AND NON-CORE PROPERTY OR THE ORANGE EX-SERVICES’ CLUB LIMITED

(a)    The Following properties are core property of the Club:

(i)                 Anson Street, Orange (Freehold) (being the consolidated lot 200 DP 1191450)
(ii)                Park Drive Forest Road, Orange (Freehold and Leasehold)
(iii)              Warrendine Street, Orange (Leasehold)
(iv) Ploughmans Lane, Orange (Freehold and Leasehold)

(a)    The Following properties are non-core property of the Club:

(i)                 98 Byng Street, Orange (Freehold)
(ii)                227 Anson Street, Orange (Freehold)
(iii)              42 Sale Street, Orange (Freehold)

NOTES TO MEMBERS
1.       

2.       Core property is any real property owned or occupied by the Club that comprises:
(a)    The defined premises of the Club; or
(b)    Any facility provided by the Club for use of its members and their guests; or
(c)     

3.       

Pursuant to Section 41J (2) of the Registered Clubs Act for the financial year ended 31
December 2021:

Section 41J(2) of the Registered Clubs Act requires the annual report to specify the
core property and non-core property of the Club as at the end of the financial year
to which the report relates.

Any other property declared by a resolution passed by a majority of the members
present at a general meeting of Ordinary members of the Club to be core property
of the Club.

Non-core property is any other property other than that referred to above as core
property and any property which is declared by the members at a general meeting
or Ordinary members of the Club not to be core property.
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